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SILKBANK LIMITED

CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ,
AS AT JUNE 30, 2023 .

June 30, Decernber 31,
2023 2022
Un-audited Audited
Note Rupees in'0go

ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 8 12,399,818 10,198,476
Balances with other banks g 1,672,627 586,790
Lendings to financial institutions 10 2,567,381 8,148,198
lnv_e§tments 11 203,349,528 185,676,618
Advanpes 12 54,993,855 64,117,202
Fixed assets 13 4,938,241 5,429,237
Intangible assets 14 351,056 366,437
Deferred tax assels 15 26,658,578 22 661,840
Other assets 18 21,347,836 18,282,612

328,282,130 293,467 408
LIABILITIES
Bills payable 17 3,699,165 3,040,421
Borrowings 18 178,261,810 148,016,140
Deposits and other accounts 19 152,118,457 145,208,894
Subordinated debt 20 2,438,666 2,436,656
Beferred tax liabilities - -
Other liabilities 21 12,008,689 8,643,979

348,527,827 307,438,170
NET ASSETS {20,245,897) (13,870,762
REPRESENTED BY
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital - net a2 23,431,374 23,431,374
Statutory reserves 820,890 820,890
{Deficit) / Surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax 23 {704,578) 650,238
Accumulated fosses (43,793,332) (38.873,264)

(20,245,597) {13.870,762)

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 24

T

IS .
The annexed notes 1 to 43 form 2n integral part of these condensed interim financial statements.‘— -

M‘M
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SILKBANK LIMITED

CGN&ENSED 1NTER¥N¥ PROF—"IT AND LOSS ACCOUNT - UNAUDIT ED

FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Mote
Mari-up /return / profit f interest earmed 28
Mark-up f return { profit / interest expensed 27

Net Mark-up / return f profit/ interest {expense) / income
NON MARK-UP f INTEREST INCOME

Fee and commission income
Dividend income

Fareign exchange income

(Loss) fincome from derivatives
Loss on securities

Other income

Total non-matkup f interest Income

28

29
30

Total {loss) / income
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST EXPENSES

Operating expenses 31
Warkers Welfare Fund

Other charges . 32
Total non-markup / interest expenses

Loss before brovisions, extra ordinary f unusual item
and {axation

Provisions and write offs - pet 33
Extra ordinary / unusual items

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION
Taxation

LOSS AFTER TAXATION

Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share 35

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these condensad

L T I

Chief Financial Officer

T

Director

Divector

Quarter ended Half year ended
June 30, June 30, June 39, June 30,
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rupess in ‘000
11,327,649 6,505,271 20,51 0,936 12,728,113
(13,462 415} (7,360,844) 23,837,059) (12,548,187)
{2,134,716) {455,573) {3,326,123) 179,926
740,233 707,500 1,572,541 1,405,135
11,9414 - 11,941 -
120,093 180,413 362,343 268,051
{7,288} 2 {8,088} (8,358}
(42,580) (146,388) (77,445) (162,855}
112,144 30,227 142,98¢ 61,885
933,443 771,783 2,003,381 1,682,807
(1,201,273) 316,180 {1,322,742) 1,732,833
(1,805,242} {1.800,690} (3,753,813} {3,573,578)
{1,285} {1,984) {2,937} {4,103}
{1,906,527} (1,802,674) (3,756,750) (3,577,881}
{3.107,800)  (1,486,484) (5,079,492) (1,844,848)
(2,476,234) (4,419,403} (2,866,493} 4,202,045}
{5,584,034) (6.905,887) {7,945,985) {6,047,791)
2,154,435 2,280,639 3,019,448 3,955,888
(3,429,599) (3,645,248) {4,926,537) {2,091,803)
Rupees
£0.38} {3,40) {0.54) {0.23)
interitn financial statements, &+ ¥~
President & Chief Executive Officer
e

Direct: -




SILKBANK LIMITED
CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INGOME - UNAUDITED
FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Quarier ended Haif year ended
June 39, June 30, June 306, June 30,
2023 2022 2023 2022

Rupees in 000

Loss after taxation for the period (3,428,599)  (3.845248)  (4,926,537) (2,091,903

Other comprehensive (loss) f income

Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss
account in subsequent perods:
Movemnent in surplus;'on revaluation of investments - net of 1ax {107,202} {255,548) (1,363,107} {428.781)

fterns that will not ba reclassified to profit and less
account in subsequent perfods:

Remeasurement gain on defined bensfit obligations - net of 1ax 3,617 29,338 3617 26,912
Aevement in surplus on revaluation of fixed assets - net of tax (546) (545) {1,092} (2.094)
Movemient in surplus on revaluation of ron-banking assels - net of lax {308} 1309} {618} {1,503)

2,762 28,485 1,807 23,318
Total comprehensive toss _ (3334038  (3.872.711) {6,277.737)  (2.487.37%)

The annexad notes f to 43 form an integral part of these condensed inierim financial statements. .\~
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Chief Financial Officer President & Chief Executive Officer
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SILKBANKLBAITED

CONDENSED INTERIN STATEMENT OF GHANGES IN EQUITY - UNAUBITED
FORAHE Lo b et Sl WP D EANGES IN EQUITY - UNAUDITED
1 3|
FORTHE HALE YEAR ENDED JUNE 35, 2023
. SurFhin f leeree on ;
revpldatien of
Sheee . { Subutory | Avccmmaiated " -
Capitsl +ngg FredIBoal poivrve Loises Total Equy,
Iavesteents | Buabing
Azgats |
Rupeas in 300
Opdaing Balanes 2 Tanlary 08, 3027 - Avgded AN Eia 441 1928444 ERoE s {Srdsorms) e geny
Loot atestaaies b the bl yoor en2ed
e 33, B« UneauSiad . . - - 12031507y f2.841,853
Qe comreheazive incespa fpeszy ant of
tax - Usnaudked
Hgvemenbia mpis o3 revidysion of EENmOnts chet ¢ Tax - H1.281) . . - {428,351)
Remeanrenst gain ordeintd brnebrebigavoag o mel oftar . . - B 5312 5912
Mervementia santus o coveasen o004 333t et of tag . - 120947 . - 2544} .
Hivamentio maplis €A TeVER AT s noabanking avsely s et ol tac - - {150 - . {1.537)
TeafaTat e $iaplos 0 tevduaton of feod ausets
o Feeiint o Inerementsl mepredaien - pet el ta - - - - 1153 L0
Trasiter Lo aiphia cadey dustios el resbaning smaets
o gresed ol inoremental daprociston - sct ol oy . - . . 18 1,012
Teshotet by seaplus e fetihiaton of asadinkag
I5THE 44 dacoind of diiperal of P35 o ncl el tar - - - . %7 257
Clazing Balaach 52 3 June 10, H42 . Unanuditog WEMI (ATINA 430 s ER 1852200 s a5
L6233 a4t tavabion foe B haif yeor
ended Dectobier 31, 2002 - Uraudied . . . . L FRHRETS FPITN
Other comprehibnzivg Incomaf (loss) rast ef
. Gx - Uaaidied
Bivtmend s sorplys on fevitvasion effnvtsimens « et of 1z - pAa L] - - - w50
Rimesauremeat goin Srdelnsd e g in s teons - ned of tax . - . . [e1e3 4] (k=]
Maoveraert in sarphis eadevauation ef fared Jesels-neiaf tax . - (1530 - . {1.095
H:wcng&linu.m'us A redahato I nerarking Fa ~petaf ar - - (£.231) - - {1251}
Trassher fo statitovy reseeves . A . - - ..
Teanstet fram purghut en revalussen of Brpd 3ot
e zecront elieterrental depreciaton - net e fax - . - - 1123 [
Transler kem BAECE e rerehiation sl atabaaking ansels
£ Zepeurt §f inererrentsd depeediaten s catof tax . - . - 54N 1014
Transter raem surpivg &4 revatuaton of nea-bankiag
33354 61 Beevart o Sspasyl ef gasels v pet ef fax . - . . £41 43
Clazing Bolasrte a5 3t Decermbar 11, 1822 « Aadiied BN 1270132 1950530 820885 [RBI3,260) (13570747
Le2e ANr (Tt Ter bt Belf year snded
$ane 30,2323 < Une 2ot - - . - ALCRI R TR FUR 1))
Qs ﬁdtm;l_’ﬂheﬂlﬁa incone ¢ 3] -ncd of
ux-inguitied.
Hreemertla St e fewahadien slovasiments - i ef . i1.383,10m - - u {1,353 100
Reruessemtelgaln an gefnrd bott B odigafan - net ef 11z - - - i 1617 REH
Mayementinvurplos e revshision of fyed astets » notof Ly - . [{R2 - . {1,652}
Mw_m_cfging-u;h_n o‘r_wna.ﬁ.-z:‘m Srmikanking 3ssrs «prbefizy - . FLIES) - . 318
Transfar ke suephos oo TV of fived a55cls
W Irtonl ol imorental hpreoaton s nal of b . - - - nisd 1187
Trarncles oo sUpius on tersiuatea slrsndanting sty .
& steinl ol tneremental Septesatin « act of tax - - - v 1452 1412
THansder wam durples o revaluziza o 2andantag
AT A 3ot o rponal of a2ty aat of ar . B . . . B
Cloring Bylsace a3 st June 39, 2003 Un-sudited AL 2523330 1511820 sream HITELNY  20,745697)

" LIRS reTeni Y feplenert Ayt ast slde ATPR regre TS oF Tetisn 24 of e Brakay Cosprrics Creinanee, 1352,

e anreredasies § 16 43 foem a5 T prd A e conteated it fninsin ERE

Chisf Finsnciat Giiear
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SILKEBANK LIMITED
- FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING AGCTIVITIES
Loss before taxation
Less: dividend incoms

Adjustments:

Depraciation on fixed assols

Cepreciation on right-of-0se assets

Depredation on ron-banking assets acquired in satisfection of daims
Amartization of intanginle assets

Amortization of premivm £ (discount) on investments ~ net

Finance charge on lease fiability against right-of-use assels
Provisicns against loans & advaacas

Gain on s2l3 of fixed assats

Unrealized loss / {gain} on revaluation of investments - hetd-for-traging
Untealized loss on revaluétion of investments - RE(T Units

Gain on sale of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims
Write offs against fixed assels

Wiite ofis against fixed assets - Capital worlin-progre ss

Decrease f {Increase) In aperating asseis

Lendings fo financial institutions

Netinvestments in held-for-tiading securities
(Advantas

Other assels (excluding advance taxation}

{Decrease) /increase in operating llabilities
Bitls payakis

gorrowings

Caposits

Other liabilities (excluding current taxation}

Income tax paig
Netcash flaw generated from operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Neifavestment in avallable-forsale securities

Nat investment in hetd-to-maturity seeurities
Dividend received

Net investment in fixed assets and intangible assets

Praceeds on disposal of nan-banking assets sequired in satsfaction of claims

Proceads on disposal of fixed assals
Net cash flow used in investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments f receipts of subordinated debts

Payment of jease llability against rightaf-use assets

Net cash flow used in financing activities

Increase in ¢ash and ¢ash equivatents

Cash and cash equivelents at the baginning of the pering
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

The annexed ngtes 1 to 43 form an integral part of thesz condensed intefim financiz! statements; - ~
T

Chief Financial President & Chief
Officer Exegutive Officer

Director

NSED INTERIM CASH FLOW STATEMENT - UNAUDITED

Nole

31
n

Kl
3t

36

Jdunae 39,

2023

June 30,
2022

Rupees in '000

(7,245,285) {6,047.721)
{11,244} .
{7,957,928) (6.047,791)

[T idsans 142,856
291,023 297,550
17,312 17,500
27,328 27,546
182,704 {35.355)
152,959 159,188
3,047,033 4,403 566

{10,195} -
9,533 )
44,592 14,531
- {571

9,102 .

5,887 -
3,911,757 5041957
{4,046,169) {1,645,854)
5,580,815 {2,499,760)
{10,228,362) 32,276,155
8,074,314 2,112,578
14,947,600} {32,235)
(3,521,833} 31,856,739

658,574 (1,069,618}
30,245,670 12,552,881
8,820,603 4,714,229
3,612,885 3,139,497
41,337,842 19,347 653
33,769,840 50,168,575
(249,418) {162,311)
33,529,425 50,836,255
(28,950,471 | (47.221,259)
48,585 202,15
11,949 -

{41,519 {344,210)

- 28,000

56,323 38,320
{29,865,133)  (47,197.601)
{377.213)] {313,575}
377,213} {313,275
3,287,079 2,524,669
10,785,265 12,772,055
14,072,345 15,295,755

Direstor




SILKBANK Limited

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - UNAUDITED

FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

1
1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.4.1

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Silkbank Limited ("the Bank") was incorporated in Pakistan on April 04, 1984 as a public limited company under the
Companies Act, 2017. The Bank commenced commercial operations on May 07, 1995. The Bank's shares are guoted on
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The Bank is engaged in banking services as described in the Banking Companies
Ordinance, 1962. The Bank operates through 105 branches (December 31, 2022: 111 branches) including 23 (December 31,
2022: 27) Islamic banking branches in Pakistan. During the year, the Bank closed 6 branches including 4 Islamic banking
branches in 2023. The Bank's registered office is located at Silkbank Building, 13-L, F-7 Markaz, lslamabad.

Major shareholders of the Bank as on June 30, 2023 are Sinthos Capital (comprising of Mr. Shaukat Tarin, Mr. Sadeq
Sayeed and Mr. Azmat Tarin), Arif Habib Corporation Limited, International Finance Corporation (IFC), Nomura Eurapean
vestment Limited, Bank Muscat 8.A.0.G and Mr, Zulgarnain Nawaz Chatta / Mr. Zubair Nawaz Chatta of Gourmet Group.

In October 2020, the short-term and long-term credit ratings of 'A-2' and ‘A-' respectively was assigned to the Bank by VIS
Credit Rating Company Limited ("VIS") based on the Bank's condensed interim financial statements for the period ended
dune 30, 2020. Thereafter, no credil ratings have been issued and the VIS shall review the ratings once these and other
subsequent financial statements are issued.

As at June 30, 2023, the equity of the Bank is negative Rs. 19.54 billion exciuding surplus on revaluation of assets. This
includes share capital (net of losses and discount on shares) of negative Rs. 20.36 billion against the Minimum Capital
Requirement (MCR) of Rs. 10 billion as prescribed by State Bank of Pakistan (SBP). Further, the Capital Adequacy Ratio
(CAR) of ihe Bank is negative 62.66% {December 31, 2022: negative 45.80%) as against the minimum CAR requirement of
SBP of 11.50% (December 31, 2022: 11,50%). Consequently, the Bank is non-compiiant with MCR and CAR at June 30,
2023 which resulted in various reduced prudential limits and may expose the Bank to regulatory actions under the Banking
taws. As per the avallable management accounts of September 30, 2024, the equity and CAR of the Bank has been further
deteriorated. These materfal uncertainties and conditions may cast significant doubts on the Bank's ability to continue as a
going concern,.

On October 31, 2024, United Bank Limited (UBL), after completion of detailed due diligence of the Bank has submitted an
offer to the Bank for its amalgamation with UBL pursuant te a scheme of amalgamation to be filed with and sanctioned by the
SBP under section 48 of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 (Amalgamation). As consideralion of the Amalgamation,
UBL has proposed to issue and allot new UBL ordinary shares to the shareholders of the Bank on the basis of a ratio of one
{1} new UBL ordinary shares of every three hundred and twenlty five (325) of the Bank's ordinary shares. The Board of
Directors of the Bank, in its meeting held on November 08, 2024, accorded its in-principle approval for the Amalgamation.

Later, UBL's and the Bank's Board of Directors in their separate meetings held on December 02, 2024 and December 04,
2024 respectively, have approved:

- The amalgamation of the Bank with and into UBL through a share swap arrangement in accordance with section 48 of
the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962; ‘

- Execution of the Amalgamation Agreement, Scheme of Amalgamation and other ancillary documentation in connection
with the Amalgamation;

- The swap ratio of one (1) new ordinary share of UBL having face value of PKR 10/- (Pakistan Rupee Ten Only) in
exchange of three hundred and twenty five (325} already issued shares of the Bank, each share having a face value of
PKR 10/- (Pakistan Rupee Ten Only}, resulting in the issuance of 27,944,188 ordinary shares of UBL, other than by
way of right issue; and

- Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting (EOGM) of UBL on December 30, 2024 and of the Bank on December 26,
2024 for consideralion and approval of the Amalgamation and above-meniicned malters by the respactive
shareholders of UBL and the Bank.

Subsequent to the ieetings, the Amalgamation Agreement has been executed on December 06, 2024,




2.2

2,3

3.2

3.3

On December 18, 2024, a suit was filed in the Honorable Sindh High Court and the Court passed an ad-interim imposing
restrictions on certain sharehelders frem acling on the instructions of ceriain other shareholders, however, no order was
passed against the Bank or the holding of the Extraordinary General Meeling (EOGM). Subsequently, on December 26,
2024, the Bank's sharehclders, in an EOGM, approved the Amalgamation with and into UBL as per the Scheme of
Amalgamation previously approved by the Board of Directors.

The Amalgamation shall remain subject to all requisite regulatory approvals and completion of legal formalities including
sanction of scheme of Amalgamation by SBP and approval from the Competition Commission of Pakistan.

Upon completion of the Amalgamation, the Bank's assets, liabilittes and obligations shall be merged with and into UBL and
be realized and settled in ordinary course of business by the amalgamated entity.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

In accordance with the directives of the Federal Government regarding the shifting of the banking system to Islamic modes,
the SBP has issued various circulars from time to time. Permissible forms of trade-refated modes of financing include
purchase of goods by the banks from their customers and immediate resale to them at appropriate mark-up in price on
deferred payment basis. The purchases and sales arising under these arrangements are not reflected in these condensed
interim financial statements as such but are restricted to the amount of facility actually utilized and the appropriate portion of
mark-up thereon.

The Islamic banking branches of the Bank have complied with the requirements set out under the Islamic Financial
Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and notified under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 except for the adoption of IFAS-3 'Profit & Loss Sharing on Deposits’ as disclosed in
note 3.4.

The financial results of the Islamic banking branches have been included in these condensed interim financial statements for
reporting purposes, after eliminating material inter-branch transactions / balances. Key financial figures of the Islamic banking
branches are disclosed in note 41 to these condensed interim financial statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These condensed interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and repoeriing
standards as applicable in Pakistan. These comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are
notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the insfitute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), as are
nolified under the Companies Act, 2017,

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017, and
- Directives issued by the SBP and the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan {"SECP") from time to time.

Whenesver the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 or the directives issued
by the SBP and the SECP differ with the requirements of IFRS or IFAS, the requirements of the Banking Companies
Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 and the said directives shall prevail.

The SBP has deferred the applicability of International Accounting Standard {IAS) 38, 'Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement' and IAS 40, 'Investment Property’ for Banking Companies through BSD Circular No. 10 dated August 26,
2002, Further, the SECP has deferred the applicability of IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures' on banks through
S.R.0. 411(1) / 2008 dated April 28, 2008. Accordingly, the requirements of these standards have not been considered in the
preparation of these condensed interim financiat statements. However, investments have been classified and valued in
accordance with the requirements prescribed by the SBP through various circulars.

IFRS 8, 'Operating Segments’ is effective for the Bank's accounting periods beginning on or after January 01, 20008, All
banking companies in Pakistan are required to prepare their quarterly & half-yearly financial statements in line with the format
prescribed under BPRD Circular Letter No. 05 of 2019 dated March 22, 2019, effective from the accounting year ended
December 31, 2019, The management of the Bank believes that as the SBP has defined the segment categorization in the
above mentioned circular, the SBP requirements prevail over the requirements specified in IFRS 8. Accordingly, segment
information disclosed in these condensed interim financial statements is based on the requirements as laid down by the SBP.




3.4

3.5

6.1

5.2

The State Bank of Pakistan through BPRD Circular No. 04 of 2015 dated February 25, 2015 has deferred applicability of
IFAS-3 for Profit & Loss Sharing on Deposits {IFAS-3) issued by the ICAP and notified by the SECP, vide their SRO No. 571
of 2013 dated June 12, 2013 for Institutions offering Islamic Financial Services (IIFS). The standard will result in cerlain new
disclostires in the condensed interim financial statements of the Bank.

The disclosures made in these condensed interim financial statements are limited based on the format prescribed by the SBP
vide BPRD circular fetter No. 5 dated March 22, 2019 and International Accounting Standard (JAS) 34, ‘Interim Financial
Reperting' and do not include all the information required in the annual financial statements. Accordingly, these condensed
interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annual financial statements of the Bank for the year ended
December 31, 2022.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These condensed interim financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except that certain
fixed assets and non-banking assets acquired under satisfaction of claims are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated
depreciation and accumuiated impairment losses {where applicable) and certain investments and derivative financiat
instruments have been measured at fair value which net obligations in respect of defined benefit scheme and tease liability
against right-of-use assets which are carried at their present values.

These condensed interim financial statements have been prepared in Pakislani Rupee which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Bank. The amounts are rounded off to the nearest thousand rupee, unless otherwise stated.

SIGNIFICANT ACCCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies and methods of computation adopted for the preparation of these condensed interim
financial statements are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the annual financial statements of the Bank for
the year ended December 31, 2022.

Standards, interpretations of and amendments to accounting and reporting standards that are effective in the year
2023

As referred to in note 4.3 fo the Bank’s annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022, there are certain
standards, amendments and interpretations that are effective for the annual period beginning on or after January 01, 2023,
These are considered either not to be relevant or not to have any significant impact on the Bank's condensed interim financial
statements,

Standards, interpretations of and amendments to accounting and reporling standards that are not yet effective

- IFRS 9 - 'Financial Instruments’

IFRS 8: 'Financial Instruments' addresses recognition, classification, measurement and derecognition of financial assets and
financiat liabilities. The standard has also introduced a new impairment mode! for financial assets which requires recognition
of impairment charge based on an 'Expected Credit Losses’ (ECL) approach rather than the ‘incurred credit losses’ approach
as currently followed. The ECL has impact on all assets of the Bank which are exposed to credit risk,

The IFRS 9 shall be applicable on Banks for the financial period starting from January 01, 2024 as per the pronouncement
made by SBP vide its BPRD Circular Letter No. 07 dated, April 13, 2023.

The SBP has granted an exemption to the Bank from the requirements of IFRS 8 'Financial Instruments’. This exemption will
reinain effective untit the completion of the merger process with the UBL,

There are certain hew and amended standards and interpretations as referred fo in note 4.3 to the Bank’s annual financial
staternents for the year ended December 31, 2022, that are mandatory for the Bank's accounting periods beginning on or
after January 01, 2023 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the Bank's operations
and are therefore not disclosed in these condensed interim financial statements.




8.1

8.2

10

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The basis and methods used for crilical accounting estimates and judgments adopled in these condensed interim finarcial information are same
as those applied in the preparation of the annual financial stalements of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2022,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Bank's financial risk management objectives and policies are consistent with those disclosed in the annual financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2022,

The Bank's aclivities are exposed fo a varlety of financlal risks i.e. market risk, credit fisks and liquidity risks. The condensed interim financlal
statements do not inclede all risk management information and are disclosed in the annual financial staternents, thus should be read in
conjunction with the annual financial statements for the year ended Decernber 31, 2022,

There have been no materiat ehanges o our pelicles and practices regarding risk management and governance as described in annual financial
slalements for the year ended December 31, 2022 except for certain additions in the criteria lo address significant risks emanating from tae retail
portictio to ensure that refevant indicalors relaling to likelihaod of default, are being caplured in a timely manner under the current situation.

June 30, December 31,
2023 2022
Un-audited Audited
Note Rupees In '000
CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS
In hand
l.ocal currency 2,340,763 2,265,510
Foreign currencies 849,411 515,660
3,190,174 2,781,070
With State Bank of Pakistan In
Local currency current account 81 6,638,314 5,714,063
Foreign currency current account 1,113,525 758,204
Foreign currency deposit account 8.2 1,306,847 910,188
8,950,686 7,382,455
With National Bank of Pakistan in
Local eurrency current account 242,737 25,278
National Prize Bonds 8,221 9,673
12,399,818 10,108,476

Deposits with SBP are maintained to cornply with the stalulory requirements of SBP issued from time 1o time (section 22 of Banking Companies
Ordinance, 1982).

This represents account maintained with SBP to comply with Special Cash Reserve requirement (FE-25 scheme, as prescribed by SBF), It
carries interest rates ranging from 3.39% to 4.18% (2022: 0.12% to 3.14%).

June 30, December 31,
2023 2022
Un-audited Audited

Rupees in "000
BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS

Inn Pakistan
in cuerent accotint 208,736 99,380
In deposit account 89 B4
208,824 09,464
Oulside Pakistan
In current account 1,463,703 487,326
1,672,527 586,790
LENBINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Repurchase agreement lendings {(Reverse repo) : 2,567,381 7,880,102
Foreign placement - 268,094
2,667,381 8,148,196
Less: Provision held against Lending to Financial Institutions . -

Lendings to Financial Institutions - net of provision 2,667,381 8,148,186
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IMVESTHENTS

June 30, 2023 « Un.audited

Dacember 31, 2022 - Audited

Costd

Provision

amodised Provisionfor  Surplus! Carrying Costs P Surplus / Cetrying
lavestments by type: cost diminutien (deficity value amertsed cost dminution {defici) value
Hote Rupees in "600
Held-for-trading securities
Federal Government Securitles
Market Treasury Bills 8,640,688 (7,287) 8,633,421 5,606,492 - 1,821 6,608,313
Pakistan investment Bonds 9,381,541 . {1,706) 9,379,035 2886114 - {111) 238,700
GOP tarah Sukuks 494,406 - {560} 443,848 385,445 {3,185 392,260
18,516,635 - {9,533} 18,507,102 8,291,748 . (1475) 8200273
Avallable-for-sale securities
Federal Government Securities
Market Treasury Bifs 1,802,910 (31,376} 1,871,534 16,489,572 - (31,885)} 15,457,707
Pakistan Investment Bonds 161,430,915 - {4,857,709)] 157,273,206 117,914,618 - (4,932,806} 115982023
GOP Lkarah Sukuks 3,090,796 - 1124,132) 2,966,654 3,239,178 - {117,581) 3,121,697
Shares - Listed
Ordinary Shares 110,456 . 12,538 122,894 5 - - ]
Shares - Unlisted
Uniisted Ordinary Shares 5680 (5.680) - - 5,680 {5.680} - -
Real Eslate Investment Truet Units 910,032 - (59,152} 850,880 250032 - {14,581) 895471
Nen Government Debt Securities
Term Finance Cerficates - Listed 50,15¢ - 24 £0,115 60,278 - {103) 50,175
Term Finance Cerlificates - Einksled 8,760 {8,780} - - 8,780 (8.780) - -
167,509,720 {14,460} {4,359,807) 163,135,453 137,618,444 {14.460) {2,097,008) 1354606,978
Held-fo-maturity securities
Federal Government Securitles
Paldistan favestment Bonds 114 25,707,273 . . 24,707,273 21,755,858 . . 21,755,858
Non Government Bebt Securitles
Shares repurchase (fully provided) 74,810 (74,910} - - 74,918 (74,910} . -
21,782,183 74,810 - 21,707,273 21,630,768 (74,910) - 21,755,858
Assoclates
SPHnswance Company Limited 115 - - - - 123,500 - - 123,509
Total investments 207,808,538 {69,370} {4,369,340) 203,349,828 167,064,469 {89,370) {2,008481) 165676618
Investmenls by segments:
Federal Government Securiles
Masket Treasury Bitls 10,543,598 . {38,843)] 10,504,955 22,366,064 - {30,044)} 22,386,020
Pakistan Investmeni Bongs 192,519,729 - {4,159,415}} 188,360,314 140,660,588 - (1,933.007)F 138,127,581
GOP Jjarah Sukuks 3,585,202 - {124,692} 3,460,510 3634623 - (120,766) 3,013,857
206,648,529 - [4,322,750) 202,325,779 166,651,275 - (2.083817) 164,807,458
Shares
Ordinary shares - Listed 110,456 . 2,538 122,994 5 - - 5
Oriinary shares - Uniisted 5,680 {5,680) - - 5,680 {5.680) . .
116,138 {5.686) 12,538 122,994 5,685 {5,680) - 5
Non Government Debt Securilies
Term Finance Certificates - Listed 50,15% . 24 50,175 50,278 - (103) 50,175
Term Finance Certificates - Unfksted 8,780 {8,780} « . 8,780 {B.780) - -
58,931 {8,780} 24 50,475 59,058 {8,780} {103) 80,176
Shares repurchase (fully provided) 74,910 {74,910} . - 74,010 {74,910) - -
Real Estate Investment Trust Units 519,032 - {59,152} B50,680 910,032 - (14.661) 885,474
Associates
SPlinsurance Company Limiled 1.5 - - . . 123,509 - - 123,509
Total investments 207,808,526 (89,370} (4,369,340} 203,349,828 567,864,469 (89.370) {2.098,481) 165676618
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fnvestments glven as coltateral

Mackel Treasury Bils

Pakistan investment Bonds

Peovlslon for diminutlon In value of investments
Opaaing balance

Charge [ {reversals)
Charge for the period / year
Reversals fo1 (he period / year

Amourts wrilten off
Closing batance

Particutars of provislon agsinst debt securities

Category of classification

Domestic
Substandard
Doublfut
Loss

Total

June 30, Dzcembar 31,

2023 2022
Un-audied Audted
Rupees In ‘000

10,314,028 22,243,885
154,150,164 16,403,463
171,454,192 138,747,448
83,370 69,370
$9,370 £9.370

June 30, 7023 - Un-audited

December 31, 2022 - Avdied

Nen Pedorming Proviston Non Pardorming Provision
investnients Invesiments )
Rupees in '000
83,650 B3890 83,660 83650
83,690 3690 83,690 83,690

The market value of securities classified as held-to-maturity 15 Rs. 18,708 mifon (2022, Rs. 17,578 m:fion).

Duiing ihe year 2021, a scheme of merger between SPI lnsurance Company Uimied {SPY) and United Insurance Company of Pakistan bimited {UIC) was approved by the
members of SPI end UIC in thelr respective eatrz ordinary general meelings held on Oclober 23, 2021 and Oclober 16, 2021 respectively. Under the scheme, a share
swap ratio of 0.3 LIIC share against 1 8P) share (0.6 1 1} was agreed. ARier completion of a't the requisite Jegal formalities, the merger subsequently has came in effect on
March 31, 2023 and the BanX has received 11,240,716 UIG shares in exchangs of 13,267,462 SPI shates and now been cariied a5 Iisted shares under 'Avatabls for Sale’

category of investment.

ADVANCES

Loans, cash ceedits, running finances, elc.
Istamis financing and related assels

Bs discounted and puichased
Advances - gross

1ess: Provision agzalnst advances
- Specific
- General

Advances - net of provision

Particulars of advances {Gross)
In lecal currency
In foreign currencies

Performing Non Performing Totat
June 30, ] December 31, June 30, December 31, Juae 30, December 31,
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Un.audited Audited tnaudited Audited Un-audited Audited
Note Rupees In '000
42,413,210 48,922,018 45,022,218 45,114,893 87,435,428 84,037,000
41.3 22,644 225,858 195,000 - 217,544 226,588
40,747 52,148 2,853 1,858 43,640 54.008
42476601 40,201,032 45,220,111 45116851 87,696,612 94,317,853
123
I : . ! . I l 32,068,385 I 20,485,607 l l 32,068,385 ! 26,495,607 l
24372 705,074 - - 620,372 705,074
624,372 705,074 32,068,385 29,495,607 32,691,757 306,200,681
41,847,429 48,495,958 13,151,726 15,621,244 54,958,855 64,117,202
Jupe 30, Dacember 39,
‘2023 2022
Un-audited Audied
Rupees In'000
87,696,612 95,317,883
87,696,612 94,317,833

Advances include Rs. 45.22 blion (December 34, 2022: Rs. 45.117 biftion} which have been placed under noreperforming status as delafed below:

Category of classificatlon - specific

Domestic
Substandard
Doubtfdl
Loss

Total

Panticufars of provision against advances:

Opening balznce

Charge for tha period ] year
Reversals for the pediod / yeas

Amounis wrtten off
Closing balance

Jupe 30, 3023 - Unaudited December 31, 2022 - Audited
Non Performing Provision Non Performing erovision
Loans Loans
Rupees In '000

804,665 114,989 779,626 71,487

703,930 35,687 3,005,846 104,727
43,714,516 31,911 42% 41,331,378 #8.322,393
45,220,114t 32,068,285 45,116,859 20,495,507

Jung 30, 2023 - Un-audited

Bacember 31, 2022 - Audifed

Folat 1 Speciie |

|
Tolab ]

i Specific | General | General | |
Nole Rupeaes fa 000
20,485,607 705,074 0,200,681 23361430 266,528 24,227,658
[ 3,279,632 t - l 3,279,632 I l 8,771,383 [ - | 8,777,383 '
1158,397) {75,702} £232,590)] | _ (1628499} {151.054) (5.769.553)
3 3,122,735 {75,702} 3,047,003 7,148884 (16+,058) 6.957,630
{545,957) . (540,857)  (1,014.707) - (5,014,707)
32,068,385 629,372 32,597,757 20,495,607 705,074 30,200,651
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13.2

13.2.1

13.2,2

It inctudes non-performing advances amounting to Rs. 18,283 million {December 31, 2022 : Rs. 19,283 miltion) extended to
certain borrowers ("Respective borrowers”} who are engaged primarily in trading and real estate businesses which are mainly
secured against the morigage of land. These exposures are classified under 'Loss’ category. The Bank intends to selile these
exposures through Real Estate investment Trust (REIT) arrangements {Note 16.4) which have been approved by the SBP with
certain conditions preceden!. Under the arrangement, two separate schemes of REITs, Le. Silk Istamic Development REIT
(SIDR} and Silk World Islamic REIT (SWIR) have been established. Out of the total land morigaged with the Bank as a
collateral securing these non-performing exposures, the land measuring 14.34 acres and 32,28 acres have been released and
transferred in favour of SIDR and SWIR respectively. However, the Bank still hold other land of the Relaled Borrowers under
morigage having market value of around Rs. 24 billion.

After formation of SIDR, and {ransfer of land, an initial sale proceed of Rs. 878 million have been realised to the Bank against
these respective non-performing expostires.

Against the land transferred to SWIR, REIT units in SWIR having par value of Rs. 5 billion have been issued in favour of the
Respective borrowers which along with dividend thereon have been assigned in favour of the Bank.

SBP vide various circulars has amended Prudential Regulations in respect of provisioning against non-performing advances
under which the benefit of Forced Sale Value (FSV) has been alfowed for plant and machinery under charge, pledged stock
and mortgaged residential, commercial and industrial properties {fand and building only) held as collateral against non-
performing advances upto five years from the date of classification.

As of June 30, 2023, the Bank has availed FSV benefils against all non performing advances. Had the benefit not been taken
by the Bank, loss after tax would have been higher by Rs. 7,508 million (December 31, 2022: Rs. 8,186 million), which shall
not be available for payment of cash or slock dividend / bonus to employees.

General provision represents provision amounting to Rs. 629 million {December 31, 2022: Rs. 705 million) against consumer
finance portiolio as required by the Prudential Regutations issued by the SBP.

June 30, December 31,
2023 2022
Un-audited Audited
Note Rupees in "000
FIXED ASSETS
Capital work-in-progress 13.1 4,779 34,217
Property and equipment 2,816,172 2,862,766
Right-of-use assets 2,117,290 2,432,254
4,938,241 5,429,237
Capital work-in-progress
Civil works 4,779 7,625
Advances to suppliers and contractors - 26,592
4,779 34,217

On September 10, 2015, the Bank entered into an Agreement to Sell {the Agreement) with respect to its previous Head Office
Land and Building (the Property} situated at L. {. Chundrigar Road against sale consideration of Rs. 2,370 million. Pursuant to
the terms of the Agreement, the Bank received a down payment of Rs. 118.50 miillion, which is currently reported in ‘other
liabilities’ (note 21). The remaining balance was required to be paid by the buyer within 5 years from the date of the
Agreement, Under the agreement, the counter-party is permitted for new construction at the Properly site while keeping the
building facade intact being the heritage and required to be protected under Heritage regulations.

Certain Constitution Petitions was filed against the high rise construction at the Properly. These includes the petilion filed by
$BP on October 2, 2018 in Honorable High Court of Sindh which granted Stay on October 4, 2018 against any consiruction at
the Properly site. Reportedly, the counter parly had accepted the objections of SBP and had resolved respeclive
concernsfissues about which SBP was duly communicated through thier letter dated October 23, 2021. However, the matter is
still pending at SBP and the Courl's Stay on consteuction is still inplace.

Due to the Courl's siay along with severe economic slowdown occurred due to COVID-19, the construction aclivities at the
Properly site were badly hampered at various time-intervals due to which the counler-party has requested the Bank to extend
the ferm of the agreement, Accordingly, the agreement was initially extended for one year and thereafter till September 2024,
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At the time of issuance of thase condensed interim linancial statements, the remaining payment under the agreement has not
been realized to the Bank. The buyer of the properly has not complied with the terms of the agreement, and despite of non-
compliance of the terms, has filed a suit in May 2024, to resirain the Bank from interfering in its possession, dispossessing the
buyer from the propery and other actions. The Bank has also filed a counter suit in the Singh High Court in August 2024 that
the agreement be considered null and void due to its non-compliance by the buyer.

June 30, June 30,
2023 2022
Un-audited Un-audited

Rupees in '000
Additions to fixed assets

The following additions have been made to fixed assets during the period:

Capital work-in-progress 23,639 324,058
Property and equipment
Furniture and fixture 768 2,289
Electrical, office and computer equipment 8,918 7.855
Vehicles 25,946 168,162
Leasehold Improvements 17,346 4,118
52,977 182,424
Total 76,516 506,482

Disposal of fixed assets

The net book value of fixed assets disposed off during the period is as follows:

Furniture and fixture 637 -
Electrical, office and computer equipment 1,094 -
Vehicles 54,383 38,320
Leasehold Improvements 10 -
Total £6,124 38,320
June 30, December 31,
2023 2022
Un-audited Audited

Rupees in ‘000
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Capital work-in-progress 7,006 77,004
Software 344,660 289,433
351,066 366,437
June 30, June 30,
2023 2022
Un-audited Un-audited

Rupees in '000
Additions to idangible assets

The following additions have been made to intangible assets during the periog:

Capital work-in-progress 11,857 20,762
Software {direcily purchased) 81,955 13,521

Total 93,912 34,273




15

16.1

Note
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Deductible Temporary Differences on

- Tax losses carried forward

- Deficit on revaluation of investments 23
- Provision for diminution in value of investments

- Provision against non-performing advances

- Provision against Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF)

- Provision against other assets

- Depreciation on non-banking assets

- Impairment in fixed assels

- Unabsorbed tax deprecation

Taxable Temporary Differences on

- Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets 23
- Surplus on revaluation of fixed assefs 23
- Post retirement employee benefits

- Accelerated tax depreciation

June 30,
2023
Un-audited

December 31,
2022
Audited

Rupees in "000

10,668,621 8,518,266
1,677,266 812,153
3,424 3,424
12,809,241 11,871,617
62,476 52,476
340,139 340,139
112,740 105,988
120,428 129,428
980,489 940,051
26,763,814 22,773,542
(13,826) (14,219)
(7,677) (8,375)
(26,616) (23,202)
(60,219) (65,906)
{107,236) (111,702)
28,658,678 22,661,840

The Bank has an aggregate amount of deferred tax assets of Rs. 26,657 million {December 31, 2022: Rs. 22,662 million} out
of which an amount of Rs. 12,809 million {December 31, 2022: 11,872 million) has been recorded in accordance with the
provision of the Seventh Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, which require that Provisions for advances and off
balance sheet items shall be alfowed upto a maximum of 1% of total advances and provisions for advances and off-balance
sheet items shaill be allowed at 5% of total advances for consumers and small and medium enterprises. Pursuant to the
Amalgamation arrangement as detailed in Note 1.4, the amalgamated entity is expected to realise these deferred tax assels
mainly against its fulure years tax liabilities and available tax benefits with respect to non performing loans.
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16.1
16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5

16.6

16.6.1

June 39, December 31,

2023 2022
Un-audited Audited
Note Rupees in "000
OTHER ASBETS
Income / mark-up accrued in focal currency - net of provision 12,416,187 8,636,611
Income f mark-up accrued in foreign currency - net of provision . 293
Accrued rent 18,210 18,210
Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 2,053,325 1,400,382
Profit paid in advance on fixed deposits 113,511 61,895
Advance taxation (paymentis fess provisicns) 2,374,978 2,242 969
Net defined benefil assets ) 65,422 58,493
Nor-banking asseis 16.2 2,986,412 3,013,652
Branch adjustment account 732,304 413,872
Mark to market gain on forward contracls 80,060 174,849
Acceptances 281,225 274,398
Contract Assets 16.4 - -
Receivable from sale of non-banking assets acquired in salisfaction of claims 16.6 22,860 37,550
Fee receivable from Credit Card members 184,919 194,114
Others 806,228 558,208
22,152,631 17,086,385
Less: Provision held against ather assets 16.6 {857,232) {857,232}
Other assels - net of provisions 21,295,398 16,229,163
Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets 23 52,437 53,449
Other assets - total 24,347,836 16,282,612
Market value of Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 2,199,617 2,217,769
Non-banking assets
- acquised in satisfaction of claims 2,949,634 2,928,813
- under agreement to sale third parties 46,878 84,739
2,996,412 3,013,552

Fhe non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims (NBAs) aggregating fo Rs. 1,802 million (December 31, 2022; Rs. 1,802 million) are
currently un-developed and have been evaluated based on the valuation reports from the valuers on Pakistan Bank' Association list of approved
valuers. The Bank exposure exceeds {he prescribed limit of 2,5% of aggregate advances and investments {excluding investment in Government
securities} as prescribed by SBP under regulation Debi Property Swap. '

The Contract assets represent the variable consideration, receivable 1o the Bank from SIDR, against the land transferred to it in 2021, which
was previously held as Nen-banking assets. Such fransfer of fand was made under the REIT arrangement o which certain mortgaged land of
Respective borrowers as detailed in Note 12.3.1 was also released. At the time of issuance of these condensed interim financial statements, the
management has assessed the expected value of these Contract assels as Nil, as significant time has been lapsed in launch of SIDR’s preject,
which have multiple implications on achieving the project’s required profitability level and payouts to SIDR unif holders,

REIT units of SWIR having par value equivalent {o Rs, 910 millien had been issued in consideration to the land transferred to SWIR {previcusly
held as Non-banking assets) under REIT arrangement to which certain mortgaged land of Respeclive borrowers was also released (Note
12.3.1). Such REIT units are held as Investments (Note 11). The Bank is expected to realize dividends over the REIT units held during the
tenure and liquidation proceeds at the culmination of the respective REIT.

June 39, December 31,
2023 2022
Un-audited Audited

Rupees in '000
Provision held against other assets

Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims B49,232 849,232
Others 8,000 8,000
B57,232 857,232

Movement in provision held agalnst other assels

Opening batance 857,232 857,232

Charge for the period / year . .
Reversals for the period f year - -

Net reversal for the period / year - .

Reversal on disposal / write off - -
Clesing balance 857,232 857,232




June 30, December 31,
2023 2022

Un-atdited Audited
Rupees in '000

BH.LS PAYABLE

In Pakistan 3,608,165 3,040,491
Quiside Pakistan . -
3,699,166 3,040,491
BORROWINGS
Secured
Borrowings from State Bank of Pakistan
- under export refinance scheme 2,491,877 2,691,727
- under Credit Guarantee Scheme for Small and Rural Enterprises 500 667
2,492,377 2,692,394
Repurchase agreement borrowings 175,578,650 140,017,483
Total secured 178,071,027 142,708,877
Unsecured
Call borrowings 100,000
Trading Fabilily - 4,615,838
Overdrawn nostro accounts 190,783 380,424
Total unsecured 190,783 5,306,263
178,261,810 148,016,140
DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS
June 30, 2023 - Un-audited December 31, 2022 - Audited
Curency | Curroncles | T Curreney | Curencies | 1!
Rupees in ‘000
Customers
Current deposits 36,832,052 7,106,830 43,938,882 34,174,446 4,638,911 38,813,357
Saving deposits 56,603,777 6,010,363 61,514,140 58,741,273 3,938,459 62,680,732
Term deposits 37,1 85;2_91 2,218,420 39,403,711 34,539,699 2,087,904 36,627,603
Margin daposits 4,170,764 - 1,170,764 1,284,723 - 1,284,723
Call deposils 3,004,118 - 3,004,118 1,233,508 - 1,233,508
133,696,002 15,335,613 149,031,615 128,973,650 10,666,274 140,639,924
Financial Institutions
Current deposits 158,175 17,433 173,608 305,847 5,436 311,283
Saving deposits 1,381,424 189 1,381,613 2,859,793 29,810 2,885,603
Term deposits 775,930 756,731 1,632,661 875,930 582,154 1,458,084
2,313,629 774,353 3,087,882 4,041,670 617,400 4,658,970
16,109,966 152,119,497 134,015,220 11,283,674 145,298,894

136,009,531
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SUBORDINATED DEBT

Subordinated Term Finance Cenlificales
Subordinated Loan from Sponsors

June 30,
2023
Un-audited

Cecember 31,
2022
Audited

Note Rupees In "060

201 1,998,400 1,898,400

20.2 440,266 440,266
2,438 668 2,438,666

The Bank has issued privalely placed, unsecured ang subordinated Term Finance Cerificates (TFCs) as instruments of redaamable
capital undes section 66 of the Companies Acl, 2017 and the Basel Il guidelines issued by the SBP. The key features of the issue are as

follows:

Issue amount
Issue date

Maturity date
Rating

Security

Profil payment frequency

Redemption

Mark-up
Call oplion

Lock-in-clause

Loss absorbency clause

Rs. 2,000 miflion
August 10, 2017

Up 1o & years from dale of issue.

BBB+ (Triple 8 Plus) by ViS Credit Raling Company Limited (VIS) was announced on October
12, 2020, based on condensed Interim financial stalements of Sk Bank Limited as of June 30,
2020, Later on, the same rating was harmonized by VIS according lo their revised methodelogy
and assigned rating al '8’ (Single B) with a 'Rating Watch-Nagative' status on June 16, 2023,
The VIS shall review the ralings once these and other subsequent financial statements are
issued.

The instrument Is uasecured and subordinated as to payment of principal and profit lo & other
indebtedness of the Bank, including deposits,

Profil wikt be payable semi-annually in areears on the oulstanding principal amouat and will be
calculated on a 385 day year basis.

0.14% of the issue amount during the first 7 years and remaining 99.86% in last two egual
semi-annual Instaiments of 48,93% each,

& months KIBOR plus 1.85% per annur.

The Bank may call TFCs in part or In full, after 5 years from date of issue on any profil payment
date, subject to SBP approval and with not less than 30 days prior nctice to the Trustee and
Investors, The call option onte announced will be irrevocabla.

As per the fock-In requirement for Tler I issues, neither profit nor prncipal vall be payabla
{aven al maluely) in respect of the TFC, If such payment will resull in a shorifall in the Bank's
Minimum Capital Requirement {MCR} or Capital Adequacy Rallo (CAR) or resulls in an
inceease in any existing shorfzl in MER or CAR,

Ths instrument will be subjeci fo loss absorbency and / or any other requirements under S8P’s
Basel Nl Capital Rules, Upon the occurrence of a point of non-viabilly event as defined by
SBP's Basel Jii Capilal Rule, the SBP may at its optlon, fully and permanently conver the TFCs
inte common shares of the Bank and / or have thent immedialely weillen off (either partlally or
in full). Numbet of sharas 1o be issued to TFC holders al the ime of conversion will be equalto
the '‘Outslanding Face Value of the TFCs’ divided by fair value per share of the Bank’s common
equily on the date of trigger of the non-viability event as declared by the SBP, subjecl to a cap
of 1,238,380,093 shares.

Due to the bock-in-ctause as mentioned in note 20.1 and as per SBP Instructions, the Bank has recelved an unsecured and interes! free
subordinated loan from the sponsor in order {o make the payment of the insta¥ments inthuding profit thereon in respecl of the above
mentioned TFC's, Upoen compliznce with Capital Adequacy Ratlo {CAR), this subordinated loan witi be repald to the Sponsor.

OTHER LIABILITIES

Mark-up / return / interest payable in local currency
Mark-up / return J interest payable in foreign currencies
Unearned commission and income on bifls discounted

Accrued expenses
Acceptances

Mark 1o markel joss on forward conbracls
Payabie to dafined benefit plan - contraclual staff
Provision against off-balance sheet oblgations

Workers' Welfare Fund {WWF)

Advance received against fulure sale of non-banking assets
Advance received against fulure sale of operating fixed assets
Deferred income against norvbanking assets

Islamic pool management reserve

Lease ligbifty against right-of-use assets

Non checking account
PRI remitting account

Fund received against application of Housing Scheme

Others

June 30, December 31,
2023 2022
Un-audited Audited
Note Rupees in ‘000
5,480,985 2,658,665
21,161 8,496
74,592 84,740
1,008,103 1,011,885
281,226 274,399
137,636 38,691
100,689 81,171
21.1 108,812 109,812
102,394 102,394
62,043 50,951
118,500 118,500
128,848 128,848
10,028 9,220
2,724,630 2,069,815
124,454 51,870
29,044 28,074
46,730 48,256
1,460,922 857,283
12,008,689 8,643,979




214

244

22
22,1

22.2

23

24

241

24.2

Provision against off-halance sheet obligations

Cpening balance

Charge for the pericd / year
Reversals for the period / year

Amount written off
Closing bafance

This inctudes provisions made against fefters of guarantee issued by the Bank.

SHARE CAPITAL- NEY

Authorised capital

June 30, December 31,
2023 2022
Un-audited Audited

Number of shares in '000
10,500,000 10,500,000

{ssued, subscribed and paid up capital

June 30, Becember 31,
2023 2022
Un-audited Audited
Number of shares in ‘000

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
Fully paid in cash
Less: Discount op issue of shares

9,081,861 9,081,661

9,081,861 9,081,861

(DEFICIT) / SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - NET OF TAX

(Deficit) f Surplus on revaluation of

- Available for sale securities

- Fixed assels

- Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

Deferred tax on {deficit) / surplus on revaluation of
- Available for sale securities

- Fixed assels

- Non-banking assels acquired in satisfaction of claims

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Guaraniees
Commitments
Contingent liabilities

Guarantees:

Financial guarantees
Performance guaranlees
Ctlher guarantees

Commitments:

Documentary credits and short-term frade-refated transactions

- fetlers of credit

Commitments in respect of.
- forward foreign exchange contracls
- forward government securilies fransactions

Comimitments for acquisition of:
- operating fixed assels

Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each

Note

2111

15
15
15

24.1
24,2
24.3

2421
2422

June 30,
2023
Un-audited

December 31,
2022
Audited

Rupees in '000

109,812 109,812
‘ . :
109,812 109,612
105,000,000 105,000,000
90,818,612 90,818,612
(67,387,238} {67,387,23B)
23,431,374 23,431,374
{4,300,655) (2.082,445)
42,958 44,748
1,897,364 1,898,376
{2,360,333) (139,321)
4 677,256 812,153
(7,677) (8.375)
(13,826) (14,219)
1,665,754 780,559
{704,579) 650,238
11,968,270 12,893,547
19,213,159 19,054,007
857,300 872,045
32,038,729 32,820,499
854,940 854,940
7,432,921 8,214,534
3,680,400 3,824,073
11,968,270 12,893,547
2,250,838 1,727,983
16,962,321 17,323,466
- 2578
19,243,159 19,054,007
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June 30, December 31,
2023 2022
Un-audited Audited
Rupees in "000
Commitments in respect of forward foreign exchanyge contracts

Purchase 13,840,604 12,672,932
Sale 3,121,717 4 750,634
16,962,321 17,323 466

Commitments in respect of forward government securities transactions

Purchase - .
Sale - -

The Bank makes commitments to extend credit in the normal course of its business but these being revocable commitments do not atlract any
significant penalty or expense if the facility is unilaterally wilhdrawn.

June 30, December 31,
2023 2022
Un-audited Audited

Rupees in '000
Contingent liabilities:

Claims against the Bank not acknowledyed as debt 821,660 837,305
Ctaims against the Bank by Competition Commission of Pakistan & others 35,640 35,640
857,300 872,945

Suils for damages of Rs. 24,46 billion (December 31, 2022: Rs. 24.45 billien) have been filad against the Bank by various borrowers /
employees in respect of certaln disputes relating to loans and advances. The management of the Bank and its legal counse! consider that the
suils are a counterblast in response to the recovery suits filed by the Bank, The Bank and its legal counsel are confident that the cases will be
dismissed as actuat damages have 1o be proven in such suils,

For contingencies relating to taxation refer note 34.1-34.4,

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
June 30, 2023 - Un-audited

Product Analysis Forward Contracts
Notional Mark to Market
Principal gain / (loss)

Rupees [n "000

Counterparties

Hedging

- Banks 15,517,693 (56,494}
- Other entities 1,444,628 (981)
Total 16,962,321 (57,475)

December 31, 2022 - Audited
Forward Coniracls
Notional Mark to Market
Principal gain / (loss)
Rupees in '000

Counterparties

Hedging
- Banks 17,218,522 129,824
- Qther entities 104,944 6,333

Total 17,323,466 136,157
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MARK-UP / RETURN / PROFIT / INTEREST EARNED

O

a) Loans and advances

b) Investmenis

¢} Lendings to financial institulions
d) Balances with banks

MARK-UP f RETURN / PROFIT / INTEREST EXPENSED

On:

a) Deposits

b} Borrowings

¢} Subordinated debt

d) Cost of foreign currency swaps against foreign currency deposits / horrowings
e) Lease liability against right-of-use assels

f} Others

FEE & COMMISSION INCOME

Branch banking cusfomer fees

Card related fees {debit and credit cards)

Credit related fees

Commission on frade

Commissicn on guarantees

Commission on remiltances including home remitlances
Coemmission on bancassurance

Others

(LOSS)} f GAIN ON SECURITIES

Realised
Unrealised - held for trading
Unrealised - REFT Unils

Reallsed loss on:

Federal Government Securities
Shares

OTHER INCOME / {LOSS)

Rent on property and non-banking assets

Gain on sale of fixed assets - net

Gain on sale of non-banking assefs - net

Rent on lockers

Postage, lelex and other service charges recovered
Early lean termination charges

Gain / (Loss) on termination f adjusiment of leases

Note

June 30,
2023
Un-audited

June 30,
2022
Un-audited

Rupees in 000

5,051,262 4,554,191
16,340,654 7,045,865
102,768 227,631
16,262 426
20,510,936 12,728,113
B,307,365 4,986,716
14,721,430 7,034,376
223,041 93,648
416,020 252,870
152,969 169,188
16,226 11,380
23,837,059 12,548,187
132,302 93,383
1,129,622 008,088
158,900 150,782
74,265 78,932
39,699 41,473
9,231 11,331
21,967 19,428
6,665 2,768
1,572,641 1,405,185
{23,320 {148,208)
(8,533) 3
(44,592) (14,581}
(77,445) (162,655)
(9,997) (148,208)
(13,323) -
123,320) {148,208)
637 -
10,169 .
- 571
10,641 11,739
26,223 25,500
12,286 24,075
83,003 -
142,989 61,885
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OPERATING EXPENSES
Total compensaticn expense

Properly expense

Rent & laxes

fnsusance on non-banking assels acquired in satisfaction of claims
Litilities cost

Security {inciuding guards)

Repair & malntenance {including janitarial charges)

Depreciation on buildings

Depreciation on right-of-use assels

Depreciation on non-banking assels acquired in satisfaction of claims
Professional charges

Information fechnology expenses
Sofiware maintenance

Hardware maintenance
Depreciation

Amortisation

Website development charges

Other operating expenses

Direclors’ fees and allowances

Fees and allowances to Shariah Board
Legal & professional eharges
Outsourced services costs

Travelling & conveyance

NIFT clearing charges

Depreciation

Trainlng & development

Poslage & eourier charges
Communication

Statiorery & printing

Markeling, adverlisement & publicity
Auditors' remuneration

Insurance {including deposit protection)
Repaits & mainlenance

Brokerage and commission
Subscriptions and news papers
Entertainment

Vehicle runaing & maintenance

Card related expenses (debit and credit cards)
Security

Olhers

OTHER CHARGES

Penallies imposed by State Bank of Pakistan
Operational toss

Juns 30,
2023
Un-audited

June 30,

2022

Un-audited

Rupees in "000

1,606,638 1,703,414
5,260 7,500
306 4,054
80,378 102,430
68,209 14,806
58,948 29,004
32,282 35,580
201,023 207,660
17,312 17,600
- 2,179
563,716 511,712
189,053 146,566
82,731 66,792
20,788 34,700
27,328 27,546
318 289
329,229 265,983
41,890 16,772
10,156 7,846
50,004 53,226
20,025 106,894
37,880 35,107
7,883 5.416
72,353 72,476
714 1,421
1,843 564
584,083 287,838
48,628 48,032
82,542 148,166
13,416 12,175
107,661 83,151
48,210 " 40,585
. 4,450 2,752
9,876 10,157
13,725 18,795
20,033 13,643
166,712 99,024
19,448 25,462
3,048 © 3,076
1,355,330 1,002,467
3,753,813 3,573,576
1,168 1,840
1,779 2,265
2,037 4,105
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June 30, June 30,

2023 2022
Un-audited Un-audited
Note Rupees n '000

PROVISIONS & WRITE OFFS - NET
Impaisment in the value of investments 11.3.9 - -
Provisions against loans & advances 123 3,047,033 4,408,566
Provision against olher assels - net 16.6.1 . .
Reversal against off balance sheet items 211 - -
Write offs against fixed assels 9,102 -
Write offs against fixed assets - Capital werk-in-progress ) 5,887 -
Recovery of wiitten off / charged off bad debis (195,5629) {205,623}

2,866,493 4,202,943
TAXATION
Cusent i :
Peior periods 111,406 84,760
Deferred (3,130,854} (4,040,648)

(3,019,448) {3,855,888)

The prior year {ax amounting to Rs. 111 miliion pertains to minimum tax for the financlal year 2018 as the Bank charges such tax in
the year when the five year carry fonward period expires under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The income fax
refurns of the Bank have been e-filed wplo the tax year 2023, The Commissicner Infand Revenue has made amendments in the
assessments, and the Bank has fited appeals against these amendments. The appeals are pending before Appellate Tribunal infand
Revenue {ATIR) against certain disallowances amounting to Rs.3,026 million (2022; Rs, 3,026 million) relating to Assessment / Tax
Year(s) 2000-2001, 2001-2062, 2002-2003, 2004 and 2015 to 2018, The appeals which are pending before Commissioner-Appeals
{CIR-A) against the disallowances amounting io Rs.682 milfon (2022; Rs.662 million) relating to fax years 2003 and 2006. The
management of the Bank, in censultation with its tax advisor, is confident that the decisions in respecl of these appeals would be in
the Bank's favar,

For the {ax year 2020, amendment in assessment proceedings under section 122{1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 has been
concluded. However, no order has been passed o date. For the tax years 2021, 2022 and 2023 returns of income filed by the Bank
are deemed lo be assessment orders under seclion 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,

The preceedings regarding monitering of withhelding taxes pertaining to the Tax Years 2011 o 2019 were iniliated and completed.
Orders were issued by the Assessing Officer (AD) crealing lofa! tax demands of Rs.241.880 million inclusive of penalties and defaull
surcharges. Against these lax demands, the Bank has paid an amount of Rs.169.312 million. The matlers pertaining to the lax years
2011 and 2012 have been concluded, the Baak has not contesled the matters in appeals and has pald the demands created by the
AQ. The Bank's appeals for Tax Years 2013 and 2014 before the CIR-A weie rejected after which appeals before the ATIR, Karachi
have been filed. The ATIR has remanded-back the case to the AQ, however, no preceedings were initiated. With respect lo Tax Years
2015 and 2016, the Bank has filed appeals against orders before CIR-A. The CIR-A remanded back the matter to the AO, howaver, no
preceedings were initiated. With respect fo Tax Years 2017 to 2019, the Bank has filed appeals agains! orders before CIR-A, the CIR-
A remanded back the matler to the AQ, The AO aflerwards passed the orders by creating tax demands of Rs.498,831 for {ax year
2017, Rs,303,191 for tax year 2018 and no lax demand for tax year 2019, Siace, the orders passed by the AO are in favor of the Bank,
therefore, no appeals were preferred. However, these orders are subject to reclifiealion, accordingly, applications under section 221 of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 were filed in each case, though no reclified orders have been passed,

The proceedings regarding monitering of withholding taxes for the tax year 2020 has been initiated and notice under section 161{1A}
of the Ordinance has been issued. However, no order has been passed by the AD,

The income fax seturns of the Bank's Azad Kashmir operations have been filed up to the tax year 2021, The Commissicner Infand
Revenue have amended the assessments from the tax years 2016 {o 2020 and passed ordees under seclion 122(5A} of the Ordinance
tfor tax years 2016 and 2017) and under section 122(1} of the lacome Tax Crdinance, 2001, {for the tax years 2018, 2019 and 2020},
Appeals against orders were filed and these matlers are pending for adjudication before the CIR-A and ATIR. The management of the
Bank, in consuliation witk its lax advisor, is confident that the decisions in respect of these appeals would be in the Bank’s favor.

June 36, June 30,
2023 2022
Un-audlted Un-audited

Rupees it '000
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Loss afer taxation for the period {4,526,537) {2,081,803)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (Number of shares) 9,081,861 9,081,861
Basic and diluled loss per share {Rupeg) (0.54} (0.23})

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and balance with {reasury banks 12,399,816 14,201,844
Balance with other banks 1,672,627 1,004,911

14,072,345 15,208,755
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FAIR VALUE MEASURENENTS

The fair vatue of raded investments is based on quoted markel prices. Fair value of unquoted equity investiments other than investments in associales
is determined on Ihe basis of break up value of these investmenls as per the lalest available audiled Fnancial slatements.

Fair yvalue of fixed {erm loans, other assets, other Fabiltes, fived ferm deposits and borrowings cannot be calculated with sufficient refiabiity due to
absence of current and aclive market for such assels and Eabiities and rebable data regarding markel rales for simiar instrements,

The Bank's potey is 1o recegnise transfers info and out of he different fai value hierarchy lovels st the date the event of changa in circumslances that
caused the transfer occurred. There were no transfers behveen levels 1 and 2 durng the perad.

in the opinien of Lhe managernent, the {air value of the remaining fnancial assels and Eabdites ase net significantly different from their catrying values
since assels and kabdities are either shorlterm in nalure or i the case of customer loans and deposits are frequently re-priced,

Falr value of financlal assets

The Bank measwres falr values using the fokowing fai value herarchy that reflzcts the significance of the inpuls used in making the measurements:

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markels for identical assets of Fabiftes.

ievel 2. Fair value measurements using inputs cther than quoted prices included within Lavel 1 that are obsernvable for the assels or
Fabiites, either dvectly {L.e. as prices) of indrectly (i.e. detived from pricesh.

Leveid: Fair value measurements using inpul for the assel or Eabisity that are not based on cbservable market data (i.e. unobservabla
inpuls).

Tha tabla below analyses financlal ingtruments maasured at the end of the repering peded by the lavel In the fair value hisrarchy into which the fair
value measuremenl is categorised:

June 30, 2023 - Un.audited

Carrying
value Level | Level 2 Levef3 Total
Rupees In'000
On balance sheet financial instruments
Financlat assets - measured at falr value
Investments:
Eederal Government Secusities
Markat Treasury Bigs 10,504,955 - 10,604,855 . 10,604,955
Pakistan lavestment Bonds 188,369,314 - 188,360,314 - 188,360,314
GOP fiarah Sukuks 3,460,510 . 3,460,510 - 3,460,510
Shares
Listed companies 122,894 122,994 - - 122,094
Non-Government Debt Sezurities
Term Finance Certificates - Listed 60,1756 - £0,175 - £0,176
202,498,848 122984 202,375,064 - 202,498,048
Financial assets - disclosed but not measured at falr value
Cash and balances with freasury banks 12,399,818 - - - -
Balances with other banks 1,672,527 - - - -
Lendings o financial instititions 2,567,381 . - . -
Advences §4,998,85%5 - - - -
Other assels 12,732,226 - - - -
84,370,807 - - - -
288,869,755 122,894 202,375,954 - 202,488,948
Cit-balance sheel financlabinstruments - measurad at fair value )
Forward purchase of foreign exchangs 13,840,604 - 13,840,604 - 13,840,604
Forward sale of loreign exchange 3121717 - 121,117 3 - 3 128,717
Forward purchase of govemment securities rensactions . - ) - - -

Forward sale of government securites ransactons - - - - -
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On balance sheet financlaf Instruments

Financial essets - messured at fair value
Investments:

Federal Gevernment Securities
Maiket Treasucy Bils ’
Pakistan Investmenl Bonds
GOP fiarah Sukuks

Shares
Listed companies

HNon-Gevernment Dabt Securities
Term Finance Certficates - Listed

Financlat assels - disclosed but not measured at fair valug
Cash and balancas with reasury banks

Balances with other banks

Lendings to fnancial instilutions

Advances

Other assels

Off-balance sheel financial instruments - measured at fale value
Forward purchase of foreign exchange

Forward sale of forelgn exchange
Forward purchase of goverhmenl securifigs transactions

Forward sale of governmenl securities lransastions

Becember 31, 2022 - Audited

Carrylng
Valaa level§  level2 Level 3 Total
Ruepees In '000
22356020 - 22,366,020 - 22,366,020
138,727,581 - 138,727 581 - 138,727 581
3,513,857 - 3,513,857 - 3513857
5 5 - - 5
50,175 . 50,175 . 50,1756
164,657,638 5 1684657633 - 164,657 638
10,198,476 - - . .
686,790 - B . .
8,148,198 - - - -
64,117,202 . . . .
9061627 - - - .
92,112,203 - - -, -
256,762.02¢ - 5 164,657 633 = 164,857,638
12,672,032 - 12,672,932 - 12,672,932
A75053 . . - . 4750534 - 4,750,534

Valuation techniques used in determination of fair valuation of fnancial Instrumants within favel 2 and fevel 3 are;

item

Vatuation approach and input used

Market Treasury Bifis and Pakistan Investment Bonds

Far values are derived using the PKRV ratas,

GOP ljarah Sukuks

Falr values of GOP Larah Sukuks are derived using {he PKISRV rates
announced by the Financial Market Assodiation (FMA} through Reuters.
These rates dencle an average of quotes received from eight different pre-
defined / approved dealers / brokers.

Shares - bsted

Fair values of investments i Fsled shares are valuad on the basis of
chosing quoted market prices avadable at the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Sukuks - Listed and Term Finance Certificates - Histed

Investmenls in debl securites Le. term finance cedificales and sukuk)
certificates issued by a company or a bedy corporate for the purpose of|
raising funds in the form of redeamable capital are valued on the basis of
the rales annourced by. the Mulual Funds Associabon of Pakistan
(MUFAP) in accordance with the methodology prestabed by the Securites
and Exchange Commission of Pakislan,

Fareign exchange contracts’

Fhe valuation has been determined by interpolating tHe mid rétés

announced by the State Bank of Pak»slan

Fair value of non-financial assets

Information about the (air valus hi erarchy of Bank's nen-fnancial assels as al the end of tha repemng penod are 85 fo&vms

Operating fixed assels - Jand and buildings
Non-banking assels acquired in salisfaction of claims

Opetating fixed assets - land and buitdings
Non-banking assels acquired in satisfacton of claims

June 30, 2023 - Un-audited

Carying \ ovelt™ Level2 Level3 Total
Value B Lo X
Rupees In 000 .
2,011,949 - : . 2,011,949 2,011,949
2,199,617 - - 2,189,617 - 2,199,617

4,211,566

- : - 4,211,866 4,211,566

December 31, 2022 - Audited

Carrying Value  Level 1 Level2 Lavel 3 Total
Rupees in 000 . .
2,017,788 - - 2047798 2,017,708
2,217,769 - - 2,217,769 2,217,768
4,235 667 - - 4,235567 42355667

Certain calegories of aperating fixed assels {land and buildings} and non-banking assels acquired in safisfaction of clalms are carried al revalued
amounts (levet 3 measurement) determined by professional valuers based on their assessment of the market vatues as disclosed in annual financial

statements for the year ended December 31, 2022,
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SEGMENT INFOCRMATION
Segment Details with respect to Business Aclivities
June 30, 2023 + Un audlled

Consamer i | Whole. Sa!e

SME Barniking - Freasury Folat

Rupees in '000
Profit and Loss Account . -
Net mark-up /setorn ] profit £ (expense) 4.046{5?0_ {6,276,354) {1,686,339) 3,326,123}

Inler segment revenys - net . v T .. -

Nen mark-up /interest inceme 1,469,593 206,539 313,239 2,003,381
Total iIncome { [loss) 5,635,163 {6,075,805) {783,100} (1,322,742)
Seprnent direct expenses {2,183;248) - {1,621,793) . 161,708) (3,756,750}
Inter segment expense allocation {782,080)- . B27,808 {45,528} L.

Tolal expenses {2,966,328) {894,184) 97,238} {3,756,750)
Provistons {135,374) 12,731,119} - {2,865,493)
Profit/ {loss} befors tax 2,435,461 (9,601,108} {880,338) {7,945,585)

Statement of Financlal Position

Cash & Bank belances - 5,916,449 8,165,896 14,072,345
fnvestments - ) - 203,349,528 203,349,828
Netinter segment lending 119,759,483 (236,710,098) 115,560,615 -
Lendings to financial institutions o - 2,867,381 2,667,381
Advances - performing - net 10,078,125 - 22,769,004 - 41,847,128
Advances - non-petforming - net 615,547 12,236,179 - 13,161,726
Olhers 1,742,631 48,812,848 2,738,242 53,203,721
Tolal Assets 141,496,786 {146,976,618} 333,762,962 028,282,130
Borrowings . 424,936 - 2070441 175,765,433 178,264,810
Subordinated debt - 2,438,666 - 2,438,666
Deposits & other aceounls 122,649,786 20,569,711 - 152,118,487
Net Inter segment borrowing 14,100,818 (160,864,018) 165,774,200 -
Olhers 4,414,246 6,346,469 4,947,139 16,707,854
Tolat liablitles 141,495,786 ° (120,468,731) 336,490,772 348,527,827
Equity 5 {17,517,887)  {2,727,810) {20,245,697)
Totai Equity & flakliitles 141,495,186 (146,976,618) 333,762,062 328,282,130
Contingencies & Commitments | 821,650 14,264,748 18,882,321 32,058,729

June 30,2022 - {(Un-audiled

Consumer/ | Whole Sale
SME Banking

U

l Treasury Total

Rupees in'60D
Profit and Loss Account

Net mark-up / relam / profit{ (expenss) 3,734,190 (3,058,800) {405,374} 179,026
Inter segment revenue - net - - - -

Nen mark-up  interest inceme 1,346,358 153,620 52,928 1,552,807
Total income f (loss) 5,080,548 {2,505,270) (442 445) 1,732,833
Segment direct expenses I {2,044,790) {1,619,633) {43,258} {3.577.,681)
Inter segment expense allocation . (721,267) 721,165 102 -

Tolal expenses {2,736,047) (798,478) ~ (43,156} {3,617,681)
Provisions . R (33,i62)  {4,168,781) - {4,202,943}
Profit/ {loss) before tax ) N sTe Y 23110938 - (7,873,520) {485,601) {6,047,791)

December 31, 2022 - Awdited

Consumer/ | Whole Sale

SME Banking i Treasury I Tolal

Rupeas in ‘000

Statement of Financiat Position .
Cash & Bank balances - 4,378,750 6,406,516 10,785,266

Investments : . - - 165,676,618 165,676,618
Net inter segment fending 111,958,604 (232,130,218} 120,180,614 -
Lendings to inanclat institutions ) o - 258,094 7,880,102 8,148,196
Advances - performing - net 17,918,737 30,577,221 - 48,495,058
Advances - non-perferming - net 12,231,131 3,380,113 - 15,621,244
Others 2,047,092 41,068,192 1,624,842 44,740,126
Tolal Assets 144,155,564 (152,456,648} 304,768,692 293,467,408
Boreowings 545,452 2,146,041 145323,747 148,016,140
Subordinaled debt - 2,438,666 - 2,438,666
Deposiis & other accounts 115,395,672 20,903,222 - 145,208,894
Net inter segmen! bosrowing 16,634,861  (171.608,673) 154,973,812 Toe
Others 11,679,679 (2,744,590} 2,849,481 11,684,470
Tolal liabilities 144,155,664 (139,864,434} 303,147,040 307,438,170
Equity - (12,592,414}  {1,378,348} {13,870,762)
Total Equity & liabllities 144,155,664 {162 456,848} 301,768,692 203,467,408
Coniingques & Commitments 837,305 14,659,728 17,323,466 32,820,499

Segment.determination are made on the basis of management accountabifly, moritoring and decision making of these repoiting segments e
regular intervals. Fransactions between reportable segments are based on an appropriale transfer pricing mechanism vsing agreed rates.
Furthermore, segment assels and liabiliies include interseginent balances, Costs which are.not. aliocaled lo-segments are. included in the Head
office. Income faxes are managed al bank feve! and ate not a¥focated to operalmg segmems - .




RELATED PARTY TRANSACHONS
The Bank has relaled parly fransaclions with its associates, employee benefil plans and its direclors and key management personnel.

The Bank anters inlo fransacliens with related parties in the erdinary course of business and on substantiatly th: same terms as for comparable transactions with person of similar standing,
Contributions to and accruals in respect of slaff retirement benefits and other benefit plans are made in accondance vith the” aduaﬂal vahnl;ons I terms of the contribution plan.
Remuneration lo the executives / officers is determined in secordance with the lerms of thelr appointniznt, .

Majority of the transaclions wilh re:alect parlies comptise loans and advances depasus |ssuance of le!lers of credit-gnrl guaran'ees Advances for 1he house bu<!dng, conveyance and for
persenal use have also been provided to the slalf and executives at reduced rales in atcordance vith the employment and pay policy and such advances have net been disclosed In the
following schedule. Facility of group Kfe insurance and hospitalisation Insurance is also provided 1o staff and execulives. In additien 1o this, executives of the Bank have been provided with
8ank maintained cars. .

Datads of balances and fransacliens with refated padies during the period / year, other than those which have been disclosed glsevhiere inthase condensed interim financial slalements are
as {ollows: .
June 39, 2023 - Un-audited December 31, 2022 - Audiled
- Key mznage- ’ Other - Key manage-
Dircclors ment | Asgociates rt-laleql Direclors ment Assotlales Oihegr:iilgled
‘ personnel : parties personnel p
. . Pupeas ia 'f00
Balances R
Investments
Opening balance - - 123,509 4 - - 147,933 4
Invesiment made / share profit during the period f year - - e - - {24,424) T
Invesiment redeemed / disposed off during the periad / year - - £123,500) - - - - -
Revaluation of investment dusing tha peried / year . . . - - . . .
Closing balance - - - 4 - - 123,509 4
Advances . '
Opening balance ’ 1,082 40,856 . 2,009,636 412 20,067 - 2,139,641
Addition during the period / year 5,585 66,160 . 113,017 13,752 188,689 - 41,428
Repald dusing the peried / year §6,888) {77,994} - {134,124) {13,172} {168,800} - {171,433)
Closing balance 1,688 29,022 - 1,980,429 1,992 40,856 - 2,009,638
Provision held against advancas - - - 681,129 - - - 680,667
Other Assets
Interest f maskeup accrued - 1,671 - 61,364 - 1,369 - 50,123
Subardinated debt
Opening balance - - - 440,286 - - - 440,266
1ssued / purchased during iha pericd / year - - - - - - - -
Redemption duing the pedod/ yeas - - - - - - - -
Closing balance ) .- - - - 440,266 - . - - 440,286
Deposlis end other accounts ’
Opening balance ) 21,621 78,485 20,748 557,218 38,168 . Hosos 38,059 790,636
Received during the peded f yoar 47,303 265,673 22,465 1,048,446 88,627 - 601EOT | 82,530 3,133,926
Withdrawn during the period / year {50,259} [257,680) {43,214)  {1,033,116} (105,274) {632,024) {09,845) (3,367,344)
Closing balance 18,525 47,478 - 573,648 21,521 79,485 20,749 . . 857,218
QOther Liabilitles
fnterest f mark-up payable - 2 - - - - 7 98
Contingencles and Commitments’ - e -
Other conlingencies - . - 17,369 . - s - 4854 17,389
June 30, 2023 - tin.audited June 30, 2022 - Un-audited
Key manage- Other Kay managé-
Divectors ment Associates related Direclors ment Asscciales Olh:;";;:iz!ed
porsoennel parlles personnet
Rupees In '000
Transactions
Inceme .
Mark-up / return / Interest eamed - 4,341 - 100,568 - 2,160 - 63,695
Net loss on safe of secuities - - £13,323) - - - - -
Expense
Mark-up / return / inferest paid 1,085 1,313 182 42,285 1,109 1,479 0955 16,442
Shert term employment benefils 38,3560 127,040 - - 26,790 © 165417 . -
Contrbution to Defined Benefit Plan 1416 4,988 - - 1432 5425 - .
Meeting fee 37,148 - - - 15,860 ° - - -




40

CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS

Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR)
Paid-up capital (nat of losses)

Capital Adequacy Ratio {CAR):

Eligible Common Equity Tier 1 {CET 1) Gapital
Eligible Additional Tier 1 (ADT 1) Capital

Total Eligible Tier 1 Capital

Eligible Tier 2 Capital

Totai Eligible Capital (Tier 1 + Tier 2)

Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs):
Credit Risk
Market Risk

Operational Risk
Total

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio
Total Capital Adequacy Ratio

Leverage Ratio (LR):
Eligible Tier-1 Capital
Total Expostuies
|.everage Ratio

Liguidity Coverage Ratio {LCR):
Total High Quality Liguid Assets
Total Net Cash Outflow

Ligquidity Coverage Ratio

Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR):
Total Avaitable Stable Funding
Total Required Stable Funding

Net Stable Funding Ratio

June 30,
2023
Un-audited

December 31,

2022
Audited

Rupees in '000

(20,362,008)

(15,441,890)

{49,136,880) (39,006,704)
{49,136,880) (39,006,704)
(49,136,830) (39,008,704
69,841,966 77,140,611
1,414,602 839,751
7,061,042 7,018,572
78,418,510 84,098,934
-62.66% -45.89%
-62.66% -45.89%
£2.66% -45.89%
(49,136,880} (39,006,704)
341,869,373 308,068,643
4.37% 12.66%
14,365,420 39,301,752
22,749,066 25,912,315
63.16% 151.67%
188,374,695 170,731,662
104,274,049 105,027,366
180.65% 162.56%




41 ISLAMIC BANKING BUSINESS

The Bank is oparating with 23 Isfarmic Banking branches al the end of June 30, 2023 (December 34, 2022: 27). During the period, the
Bank closed 4 Islamic banking branches.

The statement of financial posilion of these branches as at June 30, 2023, are as follows:

June 30, December 31,
2023 2022
Un-audited Audited
Note Rupees in '0600
ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 1,661,686 1,773,437
Balances with other banks 25,968 21,101
Due from financial institutions 41.1 21,604,677 26,511,693
investments 44,2 2,617,039 3,218,147
tstamic financing and related assets - net 41,3 197,269 226,868
Fixed assels 659,116 632,006
intangible assets 4,698 4,909
Due from Head Office - -
Other assets 803,833 1,177,012
Total assets 27,364,086 33,665,262
LIABILITIES
Bilts payable 1,131,667 414,267
Deposits and other accounts 41.4 16,706,474 15,932,163
Due fo Head Dffice 480,745 89,224,948
Other liabilities 1,076,169 970,722
Total labilities 19,394,046 26,542,000
NET ASSETS 7,870,040 7,023,472
REPRESENTED BY
[stamic banking fund 6,626,000 6,625,000
Reserves - R
Deficit on revatuation of assels {97,224) {117,581}
Un-appropriated profit 41.8 1,442,264 515,763
7,870,040 7,023,172
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 41,5

The profil and toss account of the Bank's Islamic banking branches for the half year ended June 30, 2023 is as follows:

June 30, June 30,
2023 2022
Un-audited Un-audited
Note Rupees in 000

Profit f return earmned 416 1,804,411 1,698,062
Peofit f return expensed 41.7 {690,616) {870,477)
Net profit/ return 1,313,496 718,585
Other income
Fee and commission income 14,002 20,399
Foreiga exchange loss 33,841 20,450
Income from derivatives - -
Loss on securities (382} {2)
Other income 16,340 13,641
Total other income 63,601 654,488
Total Income 1,377,098 773,073
Other expenses
Operating expenses {423,379} {413,06586)
Workers Welfare Fund - (7,200)
Other charges {17) -
Total other expenses {423,396) {420,256)
Profit helore provisions 953,700 352,817
Provisions and write offs - net (27,189) -

Profit for the perlod 926,611 352,817




June 30, 2023 - Un-audited December 31, 2022 - Aucited
In Local In Foreign in Local [ Forelgn
Currency | curencles [ Total Currency f custencies fotet
411 e from Financlal institutions Rupees In "00¢
Bai Muajjal receivable from olher financiat instifution 21,604,677 . 21,504,677 26,511,693 - 26,511,603
21,504,577 - 21,604,577 26,511,683 - 26,511,603
June 30, 2023 - Un-audited December 31, 2022 - Audded
Cost/ Provision
Surplus ! Careylng Cost / Pravislon for Surplus / .
amortised for {deficit) value amortised cost |  diminution (deficit) Cairying value
cost diminution
Rupees in '000
4.2 Investments by segments:
Federal Goverament Securlties:
liarah Sukuks 2,614,561 - (97,622} 2,517,039 3,336,158 - {118,011} 3,218,147
Total Investments 2,614,561 - (67,622) 2,517.039 3,336,158 - {118.011) 3,218,147
June 39, Becember 31,
2023 20622
Un-audited Audited
Note Rupees in '060
41.3 Islamle financing and velated assets - het
Murabaha 12,644 14,493
Biminishing Musharaka 205,000 212,375
Gross Isfamle financing and refated assets 12 217,644 226,868
Less: provision against Isfamic financings
- Spectic {20,275) -
- General - -
{20,276) -
Isfamic financing and related assels - net of provision 197,269 226,868
41,34  Islamic financing includes Rs. 195 Million (December 31, 2022: Nil) which have been placed under non-performing stalus as detailed below:
June 30, 2023 - Un-audited December 31, 2022 - Audited
Noen Non
Category of classification - specilic Performing Provision Performing Provision
Loans Loans
Rupees in "000
Domeslic
Substandard . . R .
Doubtful 195,000 20,276 - -
Loss . . - -
Total 185,000 20,276 - -
41.3.2  SBP vide vadous circulars has amended Prudential Regutations in respect of provisioning against non-performing advances under which the benefit of Forced Sate Value (FSV) has
been allowed for plant and machinery under charge, pledged stock and mortgaged residential, commercial and industrial properties ¢Jand and building only) held as collaleral agalnst
non-performing advances uplo five years from the date of classification.
414  Deposits Jure 30, 2023 - Un-audited December 31, 2022 - Audited
In Loca! In Forelgn Inlocal In Foreign
Tolal
Currency | Currencles Total Curtency Currencias
Rupees In *000
Customers
Current deposits 4,669,616 842,655 5,512,171 4,333,066 846,177 5,179,243
Saving deposits 4,391,639 2,481,185 6.872,734 5,539,108 1,417,923 7,257,031
Term deposits 2,970,983 368,776 3,32_9,?63 2,848,626 324,136 3,172,762
Kargin deposits 28,685 . 26,685 26,686 - 26,686
Call deposits 789,436 . 789,436 67,308 - 57,308
12,848,269 3,682,625 16,530,704 13,114,764 2,588,236 16,703,030
Financlal Institetlons
Current deposits 44,108 1,613 45,721 106,127 008 107,038
Saving deposits 28,859 - 28,959 22,087 - 22,987
Term deposits 100,000 - 100,000 100,000 - 100,600
173,067 1,613 174,680 228,214 909 229,123
13,021,336 3,684,138 16,705,474 13,343,008 2,549,145 15,932,163




415 Contingencies and Commitments

41,6

41.7

41.8

Guarantees
Commitments

Profit / return earned of financing, investments and placement

On:
Financing
Investments
Due from Financial Institutions

Profit expensed on Deposits and other Dues Expensed

On:

Deposits and other accounts

Cost of foreign currency swaps against foreign currency deposits / borrowings
Lease liability against right-of-use assets

Islamic Banking Business Un-appropriated profit
Opening Balance

Add: tslamic Banking profit for the period / year
Closing Balance :

June 30, December 31,
2023 2022
Un-audited Audited
Rupees in '000

924,034 764,311
3,018,506 2,153,395
3,942,630 2,917,706

June 30, June 30,
2023 2022
Un-audited Un-audited

Rupees in ‘000

6,228 163,241
187,203 203,017
1,710,680 1,231,804
1,904,111 1,698,062
423,603 766,739
134,241 67,055
35,772 45,683
590,616 879,477
June 30, December 31,
2023 2022
Un-audited Audited

Rupees in '000

515,753 276,696
926,511 239,057
1,442,264 515,753




42 GENEBRAL

424 Comparative information has been r
financial statements for the purposes

eclassified, rearranged or additionally incorporated in these condensed interim
of better presentation,

422 The figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees, unless stated othenyise,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT Grant Thornton Anjum
Rahmoan

TO THE MEMBERS OF SILKBANK LIMITED {st & 3rd Floor,

REPORT ON REVIEW OF CONDENSED INTERIM Modern Motors House,

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Beaumont Road,

Karaehi, Pakistan.,

Inttoduction T +02 21 365672951-56

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed interim statement of financial position of
the Silkbank Limited (the Bank) as at June 30, 2023, and the telated condensed interim profit and
loss account and condensed interim comptehensive income, condensed interim statement of changes
in equity and condensed intetim statement of cash flows, and notes to the financial statements for the
six-month period then ended (here-in-after referred to as the “interim financial statements™).
Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of this interim financial statements in
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for intetim financial
reporting. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on these condensed interim financial statements
based on our review.

Scope of Review ,

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements 2410,
“Revier of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Anditor of the Entity”. A review of
condensed interim financial statements consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible
for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedutes. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant mattets that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not exptess an audit
opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying condensed interim financial statements as of and for the half year ended June 30,
2023, is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting.

Emphasis of matter
We draw attention to the following matters:

1, We draw attention to note 1.4 to the condensed interim financial statements, which indicate,
among other things, that the Bank has incurred a net loss of Rs. 4,926.54 million (2022: Rs.
2,091.9 million} for the period ended June 30, 2023, tesulting in accumulated losses of Rs.
43,793.38 million (December 31, 2022: Rs. 38,873.264 million) and negative net equity of Rs,
20,245.7 million (December 31, 2022: negative net equity of Rs. 13,970,762 million) as at June
30, 2023, Furthermore, the Bank’s paid-up capital (net of losses), Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR),
and Minimum Capital Requitement (MCR) do not meet the thresholds prescribed by the State
Bank of Pakistan (SBP) as of June 30, 2023.

Chartered Azcountants grantthornton.pk




Grant Thornton

2. We draw attention to note 1.4.1 to the condensed interitn financial statements, regarding the
proposed amalgamation of the Bank with and into UBL. This amalgamation remains subject to
obtaining all necessary regulatory approvals and the completion of legal formalities, including the
sanction of the scheme of amalgamation by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and approval from
the Competition Commission of Pakistan,

3. As fully explained in note 13.2.2 of the condensed interim financial statements, there is an
ongoing litigation between the buyer and the bank on the sales transaction of the office building,

4, As disclosed in note 15.1 of the condensed interim financial statements, which states that the
deferred tax asset has been recorded based on the expectation that the acquiting bank, as part of
the amalgamation arrangement (as disclosed in Note 1,4), will be able to realize the asset through
its future profitability and the available tax benefits from provisions against non-performing
loans. The recognition of the deferred tax asset telies on management’s assumptions about the
future financial performance and the successful completion of the metger,

8, As disclosed in note 16.3 to the condensed interim financial statements that refers to the excess
of prescribed limit by the Bank under Debt Property Swap Regulation,

6. As disclosed in note 24.3.1 to the condensed interim financial statements that describes the
effects to the Suits for damages which have been filed against the Bank up to the tune of Rs.
24.46 (December 31, 2022: 24.45) billion by various borrowets / employees in respect of certain
disputes relating to loans and advances.

Qur conclusion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Other Matter

The figures of the condensed interim profit and loss account and the condensed interim statement of
comprehensive income for the quarters ended June 30, 2023, and 2022 have not been reviewed and
we do not express a conclusion on them, as we ate requited to teview only the cumulative figures for
six-month petiod ended June 30, 2023.

The engagement pattner on the review resulting in this independent auditor’s review report is
Muhammad Shaukat Nasecb.

%Kt%ﬁ?{nt?kﬁt%% 3\’\““‘* V\ O\D’l Y e

Chartered Accountants
Karachi

Date: January 08, 2025
UDIN: RR202310126wgs4VzCi8




SILKBANK >

Director’s Report as of June 30, 2023

Pear Shareholders,

We are pleased to present the financial statements of the Bank for the half year ended June 30,
2023.

Economic Review:

After growing 3.1 percent last year, the global economy is sct to slow substantially in 2023, to 2.1
percent, amid continued monetary policy tightening to rein in high inflation. Tight global financial
conditions and subdued external demand are expected to weigh on growth across emerging market
and developing economies (EMDEs). Projections for many countries have been revised down over
the forecast horizon, with upgrades primarily due to stronger-than-expected data at the beginning
of 2023 more than offset by downgrades thereafter. Inflation has been persistent but is projected
to decline gradually as demand weakens and commodity prices moderate, provided longer-term
inflation expectations remain anchored.

Like other emerging markets Pakistan economy continued to be affected by prolonged impacts of
floods, macro instability, inflation, PKR volatility and falling foreign exchange reserves. The first
half of the financial year in spite its daunting challenges ended on a good note for Pakistan as
International Monetary Fund board approved nine months US$ 3 billion standby facilities. GDP
is expected to fall to negative 0.5% versus earliet expectations of positive 0.5%.

Large Scale Manufacturing (L.SM) showed negative growth due to supply chain disruptions,
inflationary pressures and ongoing strict policy stance at domestic level to stabilize
macroecononiic imbalances. LSM growth reduced by 14.37% Year on Year (YoY) basis in May
2023, whereas on Month on Month (MoM) basis it grew by 5.88% despite above mentioned
hutdles. In FY23, 2 major decline of 37.4% has been witnessed in the production of automobile
sector and total sales dropped by 37.8%.

Tmports declined by 29% to stand at US$ 60 billion for FY 2023 as compared to US$ 84.48 billion
in FY 22. Year on year basis imports witnessed a decline of 55%. Exports registered a decline of
11% in FY 23 with absolute number at US$ 35.21billion versus US$ 39.59 billion. Cutrent account
posted a remarkable improvement with a deficit of US$ 2.6 billion in FY23 as compared to a
deficit of US$ 17.5 biltion during last year, SBP total foreign reserves as on June 30, 2023 were at
US$9.81billion out of SBP held reserves were US$ 4.46 billion.

USD PKR parity was at 285/99 as June 30% 2022, During the fiscal year 22/23 PKR depreciated
by 39%. from 204/84 as on June 30" 2022. Since, December 31, 2022 PKR devalued by 26.30%
from 226/43.

Silkbank Limited

Central Office:

Ground Floor, No. 13, COM-3 Mall,
Block-6, KDA Scheme # 5

Clifton 75600, Karachi-Pakistan
PABX: 021-111-00-7455

Website: wwww.silkbank.com.pk

“Say No to Corruption”
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Workers’ remittances were recorded at US$ 27.02 biltion during FY23 as compared to US$ 31.32
billion during FY22, a drop of 14% as compared to last year. Global slow down and the gap of
official and unofficial markets were the main reasons for the drop. Remittances during June 2023
were US$ 2.18 billion as compared to US$ 2.10 billion for the month of May 2023.

Consumer price index increased by 29.40% in June 2023. It was down considerably from the peak
of 38% in Mar 2023, CPI for April to June 2023 was reported at 34.6% versus 31.5% during
January — March 2023. During the fiscal year 22/22 inflation came at 29.05% as compared to
12.08% during last fiscal year. Factor for the upside was mainly PKR depreciation which in turn
had an impact on food, transportation, electricity and rentals. Going forward we expect inflation
to gradually come down

Financial Performance ,

In the first half year of 2023, the Bank posted loss after tax of Rs. 4.93 billion as compared to Rs.
2.09 billion sustained in the last corresponding period. During this period, total deposits increased
by Rs. 6.82 billion, closing at Rs. 152.12 billion, while gross advances decreased by Rs. 6.62
billion,

Summarized financial performance of Sitkbank Limited for the half year ended June 30, 2023, is
as follows:

Rs in ‘million’
Loss before tax (7,946)
Tax - Current -
Prior 111
Deferred (3,131)
Loss after tax (4,926)
Rupee
Loss per share — Basic and diluted (0.54)

In the current year, the Bank's Net Interest Income (NI} decreased by Rs. 3.51 billion compared
to the corresponding period last year, while operating expenses increased by Rs. 180.24 million,
However, these adverse impacts were partially offset by a reduction in provisioning by Rs. 1.34
billion and an improvement in non-markup income by Rs. 451 million.

The Bank’s NII turned negative mainly due to increased markup suspensions, the impact of rising
interest rates on the Bank's Cost of Deposits, and a rise in non-earning assets. On the other hand,
non-markup income showed improvement, driven by an increase in fee income and exchange gains
totaling Rs. 271.75 million, along with a reduced loss on sale of securities amounting to Rs, 85.41
million as compared to the corresponding period.

Operating expenses rose mainly due to US — Dollar denominated payments, which incurred higher
cost as a result of the Pakistan Rupee’s devaluation during the current period.

Sitkbank Limited

Central Office:

Ground Floor, No. 13, COM-3 Mall,
Block-6, KDA Scheme # 5

Clifton 75600, Karachi-Pakistan
PABX: 021-111-00-7455

Website: wwww.silkbank.com.pk

“Say No to Corruption”




Business Performance:

Branch Banking

Branch Banking served over 253,314 customers contributing more than 76% of the Bank’s deposit
base. Total deposit as of 30 June 2023 stood at approximately Rs.116.09 billion. The total Year to
Date deposit grew by Rs. 6.85 billion till 30" June 2023 out of which the current account portfolio
grew by Rs.5.56 Billion.

Bancassurance generated business of Rs. 19.75 million in annual premium which translates into
NFI of Rs. 9.41 million during Q2-23

Starting in June, we planned and launched a quarter-long AIO market storming and sales activation
in Karachi, Lahore, and Islamabad. This activity took place at key malls in these cities, where our
sales team was deployed to educate customers on the benefits of AIO accounts and generate leads.
The branch sales teams received a great response from the market, generating leads that facilitated
the opening of quality funded AIO current accounts

Consumer Banking:: In the Ist half of year 2023 consumer banking were able to achieve many
innovative milestones and kept on adding new products & features to its already hefty menu. As a
result, our unsecured portfolio stands at Rs. 15.58 billion with a profit before tax of over Rs. 1
bitlion,

o Credit Cards:

Q2 of 2023 was a slow acquisition phase of Credit Cards. Despite that, Business posted
profit before tax of Rs. 363 million in first half of the year after being hit by the adverse
impacts of acquisition slowdown. Business closed off the half year with 6.39 billion ENR
with the acquisition of 3,500 new cards from January to June 2023, portfolio CIF (Cards
in Force) stood at 168,915 as of June, 2023. Total spending on Credit Cards in six months
of 2023 totalled to Rs. 20 billion. To achieve these milestones, Business launched a host
of spend and tactical campaigns with special focus on Bill payment Campaign for Credit
Cards

« Ready Line: _
First half of the year 2023 was focused towards Spend and Bill Payment campaigns for
Ready Line. Various tactical campaigns were launched to facilitate customers spending
and also enable them to pay their bills online.

As a result, to these and many other successful initiatives, we were able to record a profit
before tax of Rs. 545 million in Q2, 2023. By the end of June 2023, the ENR stood at Rs.
6.92 billion with 43,486 customers

o Personal Loan:
As aresult of strategic Business decision in 2023 of temporarily shifting the focus on other
high yielding products, the growth was slow, still Business was able to make a profit before
tax of 91 million from 13,484 active accounts having an ENR balance of Rs. 2.27 billion.
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Emaan Islamic Banking (Emaan)

Emaan [slamic Banking demonstrated commendable performance during the year 2023,
successfully navigating challenging economic conditions and a difficult business environment,
The deposit portfolio closed at Rs. 20.44 billion, with a CASA to time deposit ratio of 65:35.
Throughout the year, 1,791 new accounts were opened, increasing the total to 43,857 accounts.

Service and quality have been paramount for Emaan Islamic Banking, which takes pride in
integrating service excellence into every aspect of its operations. Service indicatots reflect the
bank's commitment to customer service, culminating in a “Very Good” rating for the year

Compliance with Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) and Capital Adequacy Ratio
(CAR):

As of June 30, 2023 the Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) stood at negative Rs. 20.36 billion
and the Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) at negative 62.66% against the prescribed minimum limits
of Rs. 10 billion and 11.50% respectively.

Credit Rating:
The long-term entity rating of the Bank is A- (Single A Minus) and the short-term rating is A-2
(A-Two) as determined by “JCR VIS” Credit Rating Company Limited.

Future Qutlook:

As already mentioned in the Financial Section of the report, United Bank Limited ("UBL") has
formally conveyed its offer for the potential merger of Silkbank Limited (“Bank”) with and into
UBL. UBL has disclosed this material information to the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
("PSX"), confirming the submission of an offer regarding a possible merger. Accordingly, the
Bank also disseminated its material information to the PSX on November 1, 2024,

We further inform you that the Board of Directors of the Bank, in its meeting held on November
06, 2024, has accorded its in-principle approval for a potential merger of the Bank with and into
UBL. This merger would be executed through a scheme of amalgamation to be sanctioned by the
State Bank of Pakistan under Section 48 of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 ("Potential
Merger"), The Bank also disseminated this Material Information to the PSX on November 06,
2024.

Subsequently, the Board meetings of UBL and Silkbank were held on December 02 and December
04, 2024, respectively, wherein both the Boards approved the proposed amalgamation of the Bank
with and into UBL through a share swap arrangement under Section 48 of the Banking Companies
Ordinance, 1962. The Boards also authorized the execution of the Agreement to Amalgamate, the
Scheme of Amalgamation, and other related documentation necessary for implementing the
amalgamation,

The approved share swap ratio entails the issuance of one (1) new ordinary share of UBL, with a
face value of Rs. 10, in exchange for 325 existing shares of the Bank, each with a face value of
Rs. 10. This arrangement will result in the issuance of 27,944,188 ordinary shares of UBL,
excluding any right issuance.
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On December 26, 2024, the Bank’s sharcholders, in an EOGM, approved the Amalgamation with
and into UBL as per the Scheme of Amalgamation previously approved by the Board of Directors.

This amalgamation remains subject to the fulfillment of all necessary legal formalities and
obtaining the requisite corporate, regulatory, and third-party approvals. In light of this process, the
external auditors have included a note in their audit opinion, highlighting a ‘Material Uncertainty
Related to Going Concern.

We shall keep our shareholders updated with respect to this Potential Merger by making further
announcements as and when the matter progresses.
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